ADDENDUM #1

to the

RFP for MANAGEMENT SERVICES NRTA PROJECT #2025-12



This Addendum #1 to the NRTA Management Services Project is composed of the following items:

1. A revised Exhibit A to be used in preparation of your response to the RFP.

2. Questions and NRTA Answers to questions raised by Mercedes Cab Company.

3. Questions and NRTA Answers to questions raised by KEOLIS.

4. Please note responses to the RFP are due to NRTA by January 13, 2026 by 12:30 PM.

Expense


Payroll & Bank Fees
Drivers
Vehicle Washer Driver Bonus Pay
Driver Training Pay - Driver Candidates
Driver Meetings and Ongoing Driver Training
General Manager

Paid by NRTA		Paid Through	Reimbursable		Included In Directly	Operating Funds		Management	Management
(Bank Transfer)	Expense	Fee

X X
X
X X
X

Notes






Budget To NRTA prior



Payroll Expense	X
Advertising and recruiting


X	Budget to NRTA prior



	Employee Benefits
	

	Medical Insurance for
drivers
	
	X
	
	
	

	FICA, Federal and State
unemployment Comp., Mass Health for drivers
	
	X
	
	
	

	FICA, Federal and State unemployment Comp., mass Health for General Manager and Transit
Supervisors
	
	
	
	X
	

	Uniforms for drivers, General Manager, and
Transit Supervisors
	X
	
	
	
	

	Housing for drivers
	X
	
	
	
	Weekly deductions through payroll



[image: ][image: ]
	Expense
	Paid by NRTA Directly
	Paid Through
Operating Funds (Bank Transfer)
	Reimbursable
Management Expense
	Included In Management
Fee
	Notes

	Vehicle Expense
	

	Fuel
	X

	Maintenance - all
	X


Facilities Expense
Utilities including phone, power (heat),
X
Snow removal
Trash removal-offices Water for bus wash
Mobile radios & maintenance
X X X
X

	Office Expense
	

	Office supplies
	X
	
	X
	
	reimursable management expense on approved purchases

	Postage
	
	
	X
	
	

	Copier
	X
	
	
	
	

	Computer and internet
service
	X
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	



	Business Expense
	

	Travel expenses for management staff inc. mileage, parking, ferry,
auto ferry, etc.
	
	
	X
	
	Limited



Insurance
Vehicle
General Liability
X
X
$1 Million Dollar minimum
Workers' Compensation
Employment Practices lns.-Mgmt Team
X
X
$1 Million minimum

	Employee meeting expense
· pizzas, snacks,
· refreshments
	
	
	X
	
	Budget prior

	CORI reports, drivers'
motor vehicle reports
	
	
	X
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Answers to Questions by Keolis


1. What technologies (e.g., AVL system) are provided by the agency to which the chosen firm would have access?

Answer: Transloc for AVL and APC

2. What staffing and positions are required to manage the contract?

Answer: General Manager to be supplied by the company otherwise please see answer to question 4.

3. Can NRTA confirm the proposal due date is January 22, 2026 as noted in Section IX and not January 13, 2026?

Answer: The due date is January 13, 2026 by 12:30 PM.

4. Could the agency please provide an organizational chart and/ or headcount list that includes all current management, administrative, operations, maintenance, safety personnel, and open positions and their rate of pay.? (noting if Valley Transportation Svc EE, NRTA EE or Management Company EE)?

Answer: General Manager (management EE); Ops Manager; 2 full-time and one part-time Supervisors; Payroll/HR; Office Coordinator; 3-4 dispatchers; Bus Washers; and 3 Mechanics supplied by the NRTA,

5. Can the agency please provide 12 months of historical invoices?

Answer: This will not be provided. Refer to Exhibit A.

6. Could the agency please clarify the points / weight associated with each evaluation criteria vs total? (including price)

Answer: This is as follows; Qualifications 30%, Compatibility 20%, Technical Qualifications 30%, Proposed Fee 10%, Financial 5%, and DBE %? ,	WBE 5%.

7. Could NRTA provide what ITS equipment/technology I is provide for the operation? Dispatching, pre/post vehicle inspection, payroll and others and is the cost in the operating budget of Valley Transportation Services?

Answer: Samsara and SEON camera systems, Qryde for Paratransit and On Demand services, Harpers payroll, and Samsara for pre/post trip. The NRTA pays directly to the vendors.

8. Will the startup cost be included in the Pricing Evaluation? The incumbent contractor will not have to include startup costs in the proposal

Answer: No startup cost in the pricing evaluation.

9. Could the agency clarify any bonding requirements (if any)?

Answer: At this time the NRTA does not require any bonding. The Company may want to consider bonding for certain personnel..

10. Can NRTA confirm that the Operating company, Valley Transportation Service of MA does not employ the maintenance department and does not have management of the maintenance of the vehicles?

Answer: The NRTA provides the maintenance on the vehicles. The management company is responsible for cleaning and washing/fueling/charging vehicles.

11. Can NRTA confirm that the operating budget of Valley Transportation Services will be developed annually and if the Operating budget for the operating year coincide with this RFP contract years? Can you provide the current operating budget.

Answer: The NRTA fiscal year is July through June. The management company operating year will be March through February.

12. Can NRTA provide the operator overtime percentage for the prior 3 Years and what is the current agreed upon overtime percentage? Is that OT % measured annually?

Answer: Overtime fluctuates significantly depending on the time of year. Summer overtime ranges about 30% and off season is about 10% NRTA will work with the company to assist in keeping overtime to a minimum.

13. Can NRTA provide the current overtime penalty? Has the penalty been the same for the prior 2 years?

Answer: NRTA has not fixed an OT penalty in the past but works with the company to lower OT if needed.

14. Who is processing the payroll and accounts payable for Valley Transportation Service, is there a payroll service and an accounts payable/accounting system that is in the Valley Transportation operating budget?

Answer: Contractor is responsible for accounts payable and payroll using Harper's payroll system.

15. What is the timekeeping system for the Valley Transportation Service employees for operators and non operators? Is that expense an operating budget expense?

Answer: Harpers payroll service. NRTA pays the cost directly.

16. Are the Valley Transportation Service employees operating under a collective bargaining unit, if so provide a copy of the agreement.

Answer: No collective bargaining unit.

17. Are the Valley Transportation Service employees in any type of Pension, retirement account, if so provide a copy of the agreement.

Answer: This is not provided.There is no pension or retirement plan.

18. The existing operating, Valley Transportation Service, will be the Federal ID# those employees will be paid out of? Will there be a sale of that Fed ID# from the current contractor to the newly awarded contractor? If so what is the sale price of Valley Transportation Services of Massachusetts INC to the awarded contractor?

Answer: The NRTA will not be involved in any transition issues between the companies. Those items will be worked out by the parties.

19. Could the agency please provide details on any staffing shortages or operator recruitment difficulties previously experienced by the incumbent?

Answer: Recruitment for the summer is difficult and requires a good working plan to entice employees To the island for summer work. The remaining months are less problematic and the service schedule is also reduced making the employee numbers less,

20. For the operating expenses paid through operating funds with a bank transfer, does the bank transfer occur prior to payment being made? If not what is the typical time period?

Answer: This is to be negotiated in the contract. Currently, NRTA pays after costs are submitted.

21. Can you clarify if payroll expenses paid directly by NRTA is that the Drivers payroll or is the driver payroll paid with operating funds and a bank transfer?

Answer: NRTA wires funds in the account for payroll after payroll pre-process is given to NRTA.

22. Would NRTA kindly provide the form of contract to which it will expect the successful proposer to agree?

Answer: This will be provided at the time of contract negotiation with the successful proposer.

23. Would NRTA kindly provide that additional extension terms be exercisable upon mutual consent?

Answer: Yes. It will be spelled out in the contract.

24. Would NRTA kindly clarify whether Contractor will be listed as additional insured on NRTA:s applicable insurance policies?

Answer: Yes, on applicable policies.

25. Is there a pension (defined benefit plan) provided to employees? Will you provide the financial/audited pension statement on percent fully funded through 7/1/25?

Answer: No plan currently provided.

26. Can you clarify the flow of funds for payment of expenses?

a. Does the contractor invoice NRTA in the beginning of the month for the estimated costs for services and the fixed management fee?
b. How quickly does NRTA pay the contractor?
c. What if the actual costs are more or less than the estimate or budgeted amount invoiced? Does that shortage or excess become debited or credited on the next invoice?
d. Does NRTA audit the monthly invoices and if so, how often?"

Answer:
A. The management fee is paid at the beginning of the month.
B. Net 10 days after submission of expense
C. To be negotiated in contract.
D. Monthly


27. How much is the annual cost of service for the existing management fee?

Answer: $2.5 Million

28. How much was the incumbent management company charging as a management fee annually?

Answer: $274,600.

29. Does the management company assume operations for any existing subcorps from incumbent management company? If a proposer decides to set up new subcorps, how does the proposer recoup its costs in setting up new subcorps?

Answer: That would be a discussion between the two companies. Costs to set up a corporation is part of doing business.

30. Is NRTA willing to indemnify the contractor from pension liability through 3/1/26? Will it provide a statement to that effect?

Answer: No pension currently exists.

31. Is NRTA willing to indemnify the contractor from pension liability on an on-going basis and Into perpetuity? Will it provide a statement to that effect?

Answer: No pension exists.

32. Is payroll, benefits, and human resources functions expected to be fully performed by the subcorp and directly billed?

Answer: Related costs for the General Manager is part of the management fee.

33. Could NRTA please provide the past 12 monthly invoices and any reconciling statements for the incumbent management fee and any subcorp(s)?

Answer: This information will not be provided.

34. Will any transition costs incurred by the Contractor prior to the start of the contract be reimbursed by NRTA? Should an estimate of these costs be included in the cost proposal form submitted by Proposers?

Answer: The NRTA will discuss transition related costs with the successful proposer.

35. Can NRTA please clarify how claims costs, including Auto Liability and Workers Compensation claims, will be handled? Would any expenses that are accrued in estimate of future claims be considered a "Reimbursable Operating Expense" that would be paid to the Contractor by NRTA monthly?

Answer: NRTA provides auto insurance directly. Workers Comp. is a "reimbursable expense"

36. Could NRTA please confirm that the legal fees, expenses, and costs involved in any claims, damages, or losses would also be covered? Could NRTA please confirm that the they intend to reimburse the contractor against pension liability costs that result from the pension ending and/or being underfunded?

Answer: NRTA will work with the company to discuss legal related expenses, No pension exists.

37. Can NRTA confirm they have an insurance policy that covers pension liability? If so, could you please provide details as to what the coverage includes?

Answer: No pension exists.

38. Would NRTA consider a 14 day extension for responses to the RFP?

Answer: No

39. Will NRTA allow forms to be signed via electronic signature (e.g. Docusign) that will allow a CEO to sign from his or her current location?

Answer: Yes, through Docusign.

RFP  - Management Services	NRTA Project# 2025-12

Answers to Questions by Mercedes Cab Company Inc.


1. RFP deadline on page 1 does not match section IX page 9, clarify please.

Answer: The correct date is January 13, 2026 at 12:30 PM.

2. Per page 5-Training - Is Farebox training required now, or will it only be required if fare collection returns?
Answer: Only if fare collection resumes.

3. Per page 5-Training - What is the training "Check out Ride" specifically referring to?

Answer: As part of the training program, actually taking the trainee out for a drive in vehicles to "check" the ability of the trainee.
4. Provide a clear definition of minor maintenance expected per Section V-1.

Answer: Trouble shooting, explanation of indicator lights, fluid checks, fueling etc.

5. Per section V-3, does NRTA want weather logs? This is not practice now.

Answer: Log basic weather data.

6. Provide all current written NRTA policies, per the preamble in section V-10

Answer: The Mass. Right to Know law is legislation operating companies should be familiar with for their operations and maintenance programs. The other requirements noted in Section V-10 will be posted on the NRTA website.

7. Exhibit A - Employee Housing: Staff housing is a tremendous challenge on Nantucket that the incumbent firm has successfully managed for decades, recently with some NRTA support. Though NRTA provides housing, there is almost no mention of the details of this in the RFP at all. For example, there is an agreement vendor employees are expected to sign with NRTA and there are housing fees/rents paid by drivers to NRTA through payroll deduction. For the purposes of clarity in this new RFP, please provide an overview of all current policies and agreements related to NRTA housing vendor employees and the expected fees/rents paid to NRTA by vendor employees. Also, will the current housing agreement between NRTA and vendor employees be changed in any way?

Answer: NRTA owns several houses for employee housing purposes. NRTA has policies and procedures in place for these houses, NRTA will work with the contractor to ensure staff has housing opportunities on the island.

8. Exhibit A - provide clarification on employee benefits for General manager section. The statement notes that this expense is for General Manager and Transit Supervisors. The current practice is that all

vendor staff performing work for NRTA, except the General Manager, are repaid to the vendor. This would be a significant shift from current practice.

Answer: NRTA has made some changes to Exhibit A which is included in Addendum #1.

9. Exhibit A - office supplies has a checkbox in two locations, please clarify which it is or if this is meant to indicate some office supplies are reimbursable and some are purchased directly?

Answer: Please see revised Exhibit A included in Addendum #1.

10. Exhibit A - there is no checkbox on these items, please clarify: employee meeting expense, Employment Practice Insurance - Drivers.

Answer: Please see revised Exhibit A included in Addendum#1.

11. Per Section Vll -1C: The incumbent firm is supported by a much larger parent company providing essential training, back of house, HR, recruitment, logistics support, temporary staffing and other support to ensure successful performance of the contract - should the parent company be identified in this section?

Answer: Yes and the capabilities of the firm to make the daily operations a success.

12. Provide a complete list of all entities and/or people that have requested the RFP package.

Answer: This information will not be provided at this time.

13. Provide all questions and clarifications asked by any entity or person related to this RFP and any responses provided by NRTA.

Answer: This will be provided to all companies requesting the RFP. This information will be included as an amendment to the RFP.
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